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Oconee Financial Corporation (“Oconee™), a registered bank holding company, was incorporated under the laws of Georgia
“in 1998 and commenced operations by acquiring 100% of the outstanding shares of Oconee State Bank (the “Bank™) '
effective January 1, 1999. Oconee is the Bank’s successor issuer after the aforementioned acquisition. All of Oconee’s
" activities are currently conducted by the Bank, its wholly-owned subsidiary, which was incorporated under the laws of
Georgia in 1959 and opened its doors for business in Watkinsville, Georgia on February 1, 1960. “The Bank’s executive
offices are located at 35 North Main Street, Watkinsville, Georgia 30677. At December 31,2009, Oconee’s total assets were
- $285,299,000 with shareholders’ equity of $24,685,613. . ) :

At December 31, 2009, Oconee had 714 shareholders of record holding 899,815 shares of Oconee’s issued and outstanding
common stock, $2.00 par value. At the present time, there is no established public trading market for Oconee’s common
stock. Management is aware of 4 ;crades of stock in 2009, aggregating 835 shares in blocks ranging from 50 shares to 500
shares at prices of $60.00 per share. Management is aware of 32 trades of stock in 2008, aggregating 3,532 shares in blocks
ranging from 2 shares to 585 shares at prices ranging from $60.00 to $90.00 per share. ‘ ‘

N

Oconee did not declare a cash dividend to its shareholders in 2009 or 2008. The amoﬁnt and frequency of \diVideﬂds is
determined by Oconee’s Board of Directors in light of earnings, capital requirements, the financial condition of the Bank,
and any regulatory restrictions placed upon the Bank that would prohibit payment of dividends.

The Bank is a community oriented full-service commercial bank, located in Oconee and Athens-Clarke County, Georgia,
with five full-service banking offices. In addition to the main office in Watkinsville, the Bank has a branch in Bogart,
located on U.S. Highway 78 at Mars Hill Road, a branch located on Experiment Station Road, which serves the Butler’s
Crossing community, a branch in the Fortson, Bentley and Griffin Building on Daniell’s Bridge Road, and an in-store
branch in the East Athens Walmart Supercenter located on Lexington Road in Athens. In addition to these branch locations,
the Bank also has six automated teller machines located at various locations within Oconee and Athens-Clarke County. The
" Bank is committed to providing a full range of financial products and services for consumers and businesses in Oconee and
surrounding counties. ‘ ) '

.
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LLETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS \ .

/

Dear Fellow, Shareholders: -

For much of the past two years, we have been navigating our way through the longest and most
evere recession since the 1930’s. The year 2009 found what some economists may call the bottom
of the economic downturn. Even though there are signs that the overall economy appears to be

is over. Unemployment levels continue to be high and housing prices remain depressed The effects
f the downturn have resulted in budget woes for the State of Georgia, which further impact local
- governments, school districts, and the University of Georgia. .These events affect our community and
ause us to be cautious in forecasting significant improvement for 2010, but we do think the economy
W111 gain strength in the coming year.

For Oconee State Bank, there was very little in the way of loan demand from our customers in 2009. As the result of economic

_ uncertainty, both businesses and individuals have been soméwhat hesitant to go into debt.as in some cases they are not assured of

continued employment. In 2009, we continued to make every effort to work with our customers who have been impagted by the .
recession in hopes that they can eventually get back on their feet in the coming years. Most of our loan customers’ issues were
addressed in the latter half of 2008, wherein we dealt with declining real estate values resulting in substantial provisions to our
loan loss.reserves. The proactive actions taken by the Bank in 2008 resulted in improved performance in 2009 and will continue
to benefit us going forward as we emerge from the current economic crisis. _ /

2009 was another difficult year for our Company, and we will again show a net loss for the year, but our performance was much -
lmproved over 2008. Since my letter to you on February 5, 2010, we received an updated real estate appraisal on a nonperforming -
loan in the process of foreclosure proceedings. Although the appraisal was’ requested. in the latter part of 2009, it was not

' received until mid-February 2010. As a result of declining real estate values affecting this loan, the Bank took a write-down on

its books and made an additional provision to its loan loss reserve. - With the knowledge of this new information, we are required-
“under generally accepted accounting principles to back date these accounting adjustments into 2009 since our audited financial
staternents had not yet been issued by our independent accounting firm. As the result of this and other timing adjustments, our
net loss increased from $568,731 (unaudited), as I reported in my February letter, to a loss of $1,199,709 (audited) as reflected in
this Annual Report. I am pleased to report that 2009°s net loss narrowed substantially w1th an improvement of over $2.2 million,
or 65%, from the Company s loss of $3,426,359 in 2008.

There were three s1gn1ﬁcant areas which 1mpacted last year’s performance. First, 1nterest income dechned by $2,962,855,
compared to 2008, as the result of continued weak loan demand. This was offset by a decrease of $2, 221 ,282 in interest expense
due to the lower interest rate environment. The net result was a decline in net interest income of $741,573. Secondly, the Bank

_ provided a total of $2,140,000 from operating income to our loan loss reserves. ‘Our provision expense for 2009 continued to

- be higher than under normal operating conditions, but decreased by $5,323,000 or 71% lower than 2008. Third, othet operating
expenses were up by $974,484, primarily due to an increase of $733,183 in FDIC insurance premiums assessment expense and
an increase in expenses on other real estate of $554,601 as compared to 2008 levels. As’you can see, these areas alone accounted
for over $4.1 million reduction in pre- tax income for last year. ) -

We knew going into 2009 that loan demand would continue to be weak impacting our ability to grow revenue and that expenses
‘related to working through troubled loans would continue to be elevated.- We also knew that for us to have any impact on
improving our earm,ngs performance that it would come by way of improving asset quality, expense reduction, and balance sheet

management strategies. In light of this, we expanded our cost-cutting initiatives which began in 2008. We undertook a complete
review of all expenses in 2009. As a result of these efforts, salaries and employee benefits expense was reduced by $389,155 in

2009 as the result of a hiring freeze allowing the Bank to downsize staff thréugh attrition by 11 employees, reduction of certain

employee benefits, and implementation of a voluntary work reduction program. In addition; asa continuation from 2008, no

officers received performance-driven bonuses or incentive Compensation in 2009. Occupancy expense was reduced by $82,303
during the past year as the result of cutting back on or delaying fixed asset purchases and closing the Athens Branch. Other
operatmg expenses were reduced in a number of areas, offsetting increases mentioned previously, including a one—thlrd reductlon

- in directors’ fees and cuts in marketing and other operating expenses -

As I reported to you in my letter dated September 17, 2009, the Bank entered into a Stlpulatlon and Consent to the Issuance of an
Order to Cease and Desist with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Georgia Department of Bank,mg and Finance -
on August 18, 2009. I am pleased to report that the Bank is in full compliance with all the directives of the Order.. Compliance
with the Consent Agreement is monitored by a committeé made up of members of the Board of Directors of the Company. The
primary focus of management’s plan going forward will be to.reduce levels of adversely classified and nonperforming assets,
maintain and improve the Bank’s capital ratios, and maintain compliance w1th the other provisions of the Order.

'~ stabilizing, our local economy has not improved to the point that anyone can claim that the recession . . -
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS, CONTINUED

The Bank made good progress during 2009 to improve asset quality as measured by reductions in the level of rfonperforming
assets and loan charge-offs. In addition to reducing the provision expense for potential loan losses from $7,463,000 in 2008 to
$2,140,000 in 2009, we were able to reduce the level of nonperforming assets by $5.9 million from $30,577,603 at year-end

2008 to $24,671,111 at December 31, 2009. In addition, loan charge-offs were $2.943,798 for 2009, which were $3.7 million, or .

55.6%, less than the $6,625,721 charged off in 2008. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses ended 2009 at $3,497,292. For those
of you who follow the Texas ratio, as published quarterly in the Atlanta Journal & Constitution and other publications, which lists
banks whose nonperforming assets exceed 100% of their Tier 1 Capital and Reserves, our Texas ratio as of December 31, 2009
was 89.1%. Although there is more work to be done to continue to reduce our levels of nonperforming and adversely classified
assets, we are very pleased with the progress made in 2009. ' \ -

The Company ended 2009 with total shareholders” equity of $24,685,613 compared to $25,797,188 at the end of 2008. Under
the provisions of our Consent Agreement, we are required to maintain capital ratios of 8.0% for Tier 1 Capital to total-assets and
10% for Total Risk-Based Capital. Our capital ratios improved in 2009 with Tier 1 Capital to average total assets ending the
year at 8.3%, compared to 8.1% at year-end 2008. Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weijghted Assets ended 2009 at 12.2%, compared to
11.7% in 2008. Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets stood at 13.5% at December 31, 2009, compared to 13.0% at 12/31/2008.
] encourage you to review the capital ratios table at the end of Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for more details
regarding the Bank’s capital ratios compared to regulatory guidelines. - : '

. With all the change and challenges we’ve faced in the past two years, we remain committed to our vision to provide long-term
stability and value to our stakeholders. The areas of strength.within our company remain at the core of what we do every day and
how we respond during periods of adversity. We are fortunate to have a strong capital base and are committed to maintaining
and growing our capital. The Company continues to have excess liquidity comprised primarily of local core deposits, and we are

_fortunate to have an experienced management team and dedicated staff; as well as a supportive and involved Board of Directors,

all working together for the benefit of our shareholders, our customers, and our community.’
. . . ‘

An essential element of our core values is based on giving back to the communities that have supported us for the past 50 years. )
We have always placed importance’ on investing in our community not only because it is where we live and work, but because it.

is who we are.  For many years, Oconee State Bank has provided financial education within the schools from teaching students
about the importance of saving money to managing a budget to instruction in career opportunities. From building a Habitat for

Humanity house to providing dinnér at the homeless shelter to supporting numerous local charitable and worthwhile causes, you,

can count on Oconee State Bank and its employees to lend a hand. This past year our employees volunteered over 603 hours
within our community. Even in tough times you can count on us to provide financial solutions for our customers and to support
our community. ’ : )

The year 2010 has started out with a year long recognition of Oconee State Ba_nk;s 50™ Anniversary. On February 1, 2010, we
held a special day of celebration at our Main Office in Watkinsville. Old photographs and memorabilia were displayed for all to
enjoy. At this event, some of our original stockholders shared stories about our humble beginnings. In addition, a number of our
employees have put together a pictorial timeline of the past 15 years, which will be on display at the annual shareholders’ meeting
on May 3, 2010 at the H. Mell Wells Operations Center. There will also be other events throughout the remainder of this year as
we recognize this significant milestone in the life of our Bank. ‘

In looking forward, I cannot think of a better golden anniversary gift than a return to profitability in 2010 and that will be our
focus for the coming year. Faced with a weak and uncertain ‘economy which will continue to impact the demand for loans,
we will strive to continue to control expenses and reduce our level of nonperforming and adversely classified assets. We will
continue to be less aggressive in growing the Bank to protect our capital ratios, and we will continue to manage through the near-
term challenges to istren"gthen and stabilize the Bank going forward. Having gone through these difficult times, I still maintain a
positive-and optimistic outlook for our future. \ :

As T'look back 6n 2009 and ahead to the rest of\2010, I want to thank Ocipnee State Bank’s customers, employees, shargholders,
_ and Board members for their continued patience and support. We take our responsibilities very seriously, and we are working
hard every day to perform in a manner to justify the trust and confidence which.you have placed in us.

Sincerely,
B. Amrey Harden . : -

President and Chief Executive Officer
April 5,2010 o

%
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

" For the"Year

Net income (loss) $ (12000 $ (3,426) 65.0%
Cash dividends’ pald - - 0.0%
Per share: ‘
Net i 1ncome (loss) (1.33) (3.81) 65.0%
Cash dividends pa1d : - ’ - 0.0%
Book value 2743 28.67 -4.3%
At Year End A . :
Total assets 285,299 308,156 -7.4%
Earning assets 250,188 264,808 . . 5.5%
Investment securities 66,903 - 79,762 -16.1%
Loans 179,783 195,791 -8.2%
Reserve for loan losses 3497 4215 - -17.0%
Deposits 250,442 275038 - -89%
Shareholders' equlty 24 686 25,797 -43%
No. of shares outstanding 899,815 899,815 00%
Full-time equivalent employees 87.0 95.0 -8.4%
Financial Ratios - - ‘ -
~ Return on average assets (ROA) -0.39% -1.10%
Return on average equity (ROE) -4.72% -11.67%
Net interest margin ‘ 2.59% 2.68%

Vision Statement

Years Ended Décember/31,

2009

2008

Percent
Change .

_(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

/

To be the Bank of Choice providing long-term stability and value to.our community, customers, employees, and

stockholders as a high performmg, 1ndependent community bank.

- Mission Statement

To serve our communities by prov1dmg quahty financial products and services in a friendly and competent manner.

Customer Value Pr0p051t10n

We recognize that we must effectively and efﬁmently employ human and physical resources that ensure personahzed
responsive service to our customers by providing: :

* Honesty and integrity in relationships
* Service that exceeds customer expectations
» Competent and professionial employees

N

* A complete menu of banking ‘services -
» A safe and convenient place to bank
* Local decision making



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

This ;malysis of Oconeg has been prepared to provide insight into the financial condition of Oconee, and addresses
the factors which have affected our results of operations. Our financial statements and accompanying notes -which
follow are an integral part of this review and should be read in conjunction with the analysis. :

Selected Financial Information : )
2009 2008 2007 - 2006 - 2005

. . - (Amounts in thousands, except per share data) -
Net interest income $ 7,241_ ! $ . 7,893- $ 11’443, $ 12,198 § 11,111
Other income _ 32627 T 2964 2,708 2846 2508
Provision for loan losses - ' 2,140 ) 7463 330 200 " 612
~ Net earnfngé (loss) . - ‘ (1,200) . '(3‘,426)' 3268 ‘ 3,960 . 3,056
' Net earnings (loss) per common‘share » (1.33) . (_3.81) : 363 . 4.40 340
Total assets . L . 285299 308,156 ) 321,313 336,508 285,065
Cash dividends declared per common’ . . - -
share : , ; - - - 115 125 1.10
. | v :
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS . . | - , -

Net Interest Income
The Company’s earnings depend to a large degree’ on net interest income, which is the difference between the
interest income received from its earning assets (such as loans, investment securities; federal funds sold, etc.) and
the interest expense that is paid on its deposits and other borrowings. ‘ :

Like many financial institutions across the United States, the Company’s operations have been negatively affected
by the current economic crisis. The recession has reduced liquidity and credit quality within the banking system and
the labor, capital and real estate markets. Dramatic declines in the housing market have negatively affected the

- credit performance of our residential construction and development loans. The economic recession has also lowered
commercial real estate values and substantially reduced general business activity and inveétmentf Combined, the
deterioration in the residential and the commercial real estate markets has materially increased our level of
nonperforming assets and charge-offs of, problem loans. These market conditions.and the tightening of credit have
led to increased delinquencies in our loan portfolio, increased market volatility, added pressure on our capital, a
lower net interest margin and fiet losses. ) ' '

Net interest income in 2009, which was $7,241,000, decreased by $652,000, or 8.3%, as compared to 2008. Net

interest income declined as a result of a decrease in interest income of $2,963,000, offset by a decrease in interest

expense of $2,221,000.. The decrease in interest income ‘during 2009 was due primarily to a lower average balance

of outstanding’ interest-earning assets during 2009 as-compared to 2008. Average interest-earning assets during

2009 were $279,862,000, a reduction of $18,134,000 as compared to 2008 average levels. The primary reason for

the lower average balance of outstanding interest-earning assets was a decrease in average interest-earning loans of

$7,675 000 and investment securities of $8,603,000. ’ -
The decrease in interest expense in 2009 as compared to 2008 was primarily .due to the lower interest rate
~ environment in 2009 as compared to 2008. The lower interest rate environment allowed management to reprice
time deposits at lower interest rates as they came due in 2009. Net interest margin decteased to 2.59% in 2009 as
compared to 2.68% in 2008 as a result of the decrease in interest income impacting the Bank significantly-more than
the reduction in interest expense. Additionally, net interest margin was impacted negatively by a decrease in
interest-earning assets throughout 2009, including loan pay-offs and shifts of performing loans to nonaccrual Joan
status.- )
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

s

The reductions in loans and deposits, and the. corresponding reduction in fotal assets during 2009 were the result of a
strategic decision by management to shrink the Bank’s balance sheet in order to protect capital ratios in light of a
declining level of capital as a result of net operating losses for 2009 ‘and 2008. Management of the Bank is
anticipating further shrinking of the balance sheet in 2010 in a continued effort to improve the Bank’s capital ratios.

Net interest income in 2008, which was $7,893,000, decreased by $3,550,000, or 31 0% over 2007. Net interest
income declined as a result of a decrease in interest income of $6.440,000, offset by a decrease in interest expense of

- $2,980,000. The decrease in interest income during 2008 was due primarily to a lower average balance of

outstanding interest-earning assets, a lower interest rate environment in 2008 as compared to- 2007, and the reversal
of accrued interest income on loans that were moved to nonaccrual status during 2008. Average interest-earning
assets during 2008 were $297.996,000, a reduction of $18,798,000 as compared to 2007 average levels. The.
primary" reason for the reduction in interest-earning assets was a decrease in average interest-earning loans of
$13,951,000. During 2008, the Prime Rate was cut from 7.25% at the beginning of 2008 to 3.25% effective

‘December 16, 2008. These rate cuts had the effect of lowering the interest earned on the Bank’s floating rate loans,

which made up 36.7% of its loan portfolio at December 31, 2008. In addition, the Bank moved $30,291,000 into *
nonaccrual status during the year. As a result of these reclassifications, the Bank reversed approximately $887,000
of accrued interest on these loans. In addition, these loans-became non-interest bearing, resulting in an additional

. reduction in interest income for 2008. |

The decrease in interest expense in 2008 as compared to 2007 was primarily due to the lower interest rate
environment in 2008 as compared to 2007 as well as a reduction of $14,015,000 in average time deposits. The
reduction in time deposits was a result of a management decision to lower the outstanding balances of these deposits

‘because the lack of demand for new loan growth due to the continued slow economy decreased the need for funds.

Net interest margin decreased to 2.68% in 2008 as compared to 3.61% in 2007 as a result of the decrease in interest
income impacting the Bank significantly more than the reduction in interest expense. Additionally, net interest

- margin was impacted negatively by a decreasein interest-earning loans throughout 2008, including loan pay-offs

and shifts to nonaccrual loan status. As loans paid off during 2008, these funds were shifted to other 1nterest~earnrng

“assets, primarily investment securities and federal funds sold whrch provide a lower yield than loans.

Provision for Loan‘Loss,es

Provisions for loan losses are éharged to operations in order to adjust the total allowance for loan losses to a level
deemed appropriate by management based on management’s judgment as to potential losses within the' Company’s

loan portfolio based on the valuation of impaired" loans, net charge-offs, changes in the composition of the loan

portfolio, delrnquen01es -and the overall quahty of the loan portfolio and general economic conditions..

The provision for loan losses in 2009 was $2,140,000 compared to $7,463,000 in 2008. The substantial decrease in
the provision for loan losses is primarily due to reductions in nonaccrual loans during 2009 as compared to 2008 and
a decrease in net charge-offs in 2009 as compared to 2008. Nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2009 totaled
$17,706,000, a reduction of $11 ,066,0()0 compared to the December 31, 2008 balance of $28,772.,000.

The allowance for loan losses represented approximately 1.95% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 2009

- compared to 2.15% at December 31, 2008. Net charge-offs for 2009 "decreased to $2,858,000, compared to

$6,584 000 during 2008. Net charge-offs as a percentage of the provision for loan losses were 133.6% and 88.2%
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Management évaluates the sufficiency of the loan
loss reserve on a monthly basis through a detailed analysis process whereby the various types of performing loans
are ‘analyzed based on historical charge-offs.. Impaired loan relationships are evaluated individually for potential

losses. As a result of its analysis at December 31, 2009, management believes that the level of the allowance is

appropriate based on our evaluation of the loan portfolio and current economic conditions.

The provision for loan losses in 2008 was $7 463,000 compared to $330, 000 in 2007. The substantial increase in the
provision for loan losses was primarily due to an-increase in nonaccrual loans during 2008 and net charge-offs of



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

$6,584,000 during 2008. Nonaccrual loans. increased $19, 715 000, or 217.7%, at December 31, 2008 as compared
to December 31, 2007.

The allowance for loan losses represented approx1mately 2.15% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 2008
" compared to 1.67% at December 31, 2007. Net charge-offs for 2008 increased to $6,584 000, compared to $75,000

during 2007. Net charge-offs as a percentage of the provision for loan losses were 88. 2% and 22 7% for the years
~ ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. : : N

Other Income -
- s

/

Other incomé of $3,262,000 in 2009 increased from 2008 by $297,000 or 10.0% due primarily to income .on other -

real estate owned durmg 2009 of $584,000, offset by decreases in overdraft charges of $207,000, and a decrease in
gains on investment sales of $65000. The increase in income from other real estate owned is due to income
.generated by the operations of a motel upon which the Bank foreclosed in-early 2009. The Bank operated the motel

-during 2009 under a contract with a hospltahty management company while the Bank marketed the motel property -

for sale.

Other income of $2.965 000 in 2008 increased from 2007 by $257,000 or 9.5% due primarily to gain$ on the sale of
investment securities of $215,000 in 2008.

~ Other Expense

Other expenses .increased by $974,000 or 10.1% in 2009 as compared to 2008. The-increase in other expenses is

pnmarrly attributable to an increase in regulatory fees of $733,000 in 2009 as compared to 2008 and an increase in

expenses on other real estate owned of $652,000. The increase in regulatory fees is due to a one-time special
assessment by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) on all financial institutions during 2009 and an
“increase in ordinary FDIC assessment expense during 2009-as a result of the Bank entering into a formal regulatory
" enforcement action during 2009. The increase in expenses on other real estate owned during 2009 is attributable to
operating expenses on the motel upon which the Bank foreclosed on 2009, as well as maintenance and other

o ~ expenses on residential subdivision properties upon which the Bank foreclosed in 2009. These expense increases

were offset by a reduction in salaries and benefits expense of $389,000 in 2009 as compared to 2008 and a reduetion
~in advertlsmg and public relations expense of $367,000 durmg 2009 compared to 2008.

Other expenses increased by $401,000 or 4.3% in 2008 as' compared to 2007. The increase in other expenses was
attributable to an increase in marketmg and public relations expense of $216,000; primarily due to a marketing
campaign to_attract new non-interest bearing checking -accounts. The program was adopted in anticipation of
lowering long-term interest expense on deposits. As a result of the reduction in the Bank’s earnings and the cost
associated with the program, the program was discontinued in September 2008. -

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) . . -

The Company had an effectrve tax benefit rate of 47% in 2009 as compared to 44% for the year ended December 31,
2008. The difference in the effective tax rates reflects tax benefits that the Company realized in 2009 as a result of
tax exempt interest income as a percentage of the total net loss before tax beneflts

S

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
‘Summary

During 2009, average total assets decreased $5.406,000 (1.7%) from 2008. Average total deposits decreased
$\7,775,000 (2.9%) in 2009 from 2008. Average loans decreased $9,723,000 (5.4%) in 2009 over 2008.

»
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ANNUAL-REPORT 2009

Loans

S . .
Year-end balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008 reflect a decrease in total - assets of $22,857,000 (7.4%) from
2008 to 2009. Total deposits decreased $24,596,000 (8.9%) from 2008 to 2009. Total loans decreased $16,008 OOO
(8 2%) from 2008 to 2009. -

s

~ Total loans declined during 2009 primarily as a result of a continued slowdown in the heusiﬁg indusrry, both

nationally, and more prominently, in the Bank’s market area. A continued overall economic slowdown lessened the
demand for new housing construction and development. Total deposits declined due to loan payoffs supplying the
needed liquidity to fund new loans and also a decision by management to lower interest rates paid on time deposits
in an effort to minimize interest expense. In addition, management of the Bank implemented a plan to shrink the
balance sheet in an effort to protect the' Bank’s capital ratios due to the Bank’s capital:base shrinking durrng 2009-
and 2008 as a result of net operating losses.

(

‘Investment Securities

All of the Company’s investment securities are classified as available-for-sale (“AFS”).- At December 31, 2009, the
market value of AFS securities. totaled $66,903,000, compared to $79,762,000 at December 31, 2008. Table 3
presents the market value of AFS securities at December 31, 2009 and 2008."

o K
2009 ’ 2008
Available for sale o :
State, county and municipal . % 11,154,419 $ 16,804,489 -
Government-sponsored agencies . 28,954,155 - = 38,131,423
Mortgage-backed o 25310398 23,364,052
Other debt securities ! . 1484311 . 1,461,606
Totals o » " $ 66,903,283 $, 79,761,570

The composition of the investment securities portfolio reflects the Company?s investment strategy of maintaining an
apprapriate level of liquidity while proyiding a relativély stable source of income. The investment portfolio also
provides a balance to interest rate risk and credit risk in other categorres of the balance sheet while- providing a
vehicle for the investment of available funds, furnishing liquidity, and supplylng securities to pledge as required
collateral for certain deposrts . > ¢

<

The loan portfolio is the largest category of the Company’s earning assets and is comprised of commercial loans,
residential mortgage loans, real estate construction and development loans and consumer loans. The Company
conducts primary lending through its branches in Oconee and Athens-Clarke County, Georgia, while its secondary
lending market consists of those counties contiguous with Oconee County, including Greene, Morgan, Walton, and
Barrow Count1es part of the Athens Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area.

As of December 31, 2009, loans outstanding were $179 838,000, a decrease of $15 934,000 or8.1% over the
December 31, 2008 balance of $195,772,000. This decrease was primarily attributable to a degline in the Bank’s

/construction lending portfolio of $24,096,000 at December 31, 2009 as compared to December 31, 2008. The

construction loan segment of the portfolio declined due to the increased risk in this section of the economy caused

by a continued slowdown in the housing industry resulting in a lower demand for new housing construction and

development activity. The decrease in the Bank’s construction lending portfolio was pamally offset by an increase
in real estate mortgage loans of $8,793,000.

_Non-performing Assets

Non-performing assets, comprised of non-accrual loans, other real estate owned, other repossessed assets and loans
for which payments are more than 90 days past due, totaled $24,671,000 at December 31, 2009 compared to
$30,578,000 at December 31, 2008. This decrease is attributable to decreases in non-accrual loans of $11,066,000

_and loans more than 90 days past due of $24,000, offset by an increase in other real estate and repossessions of

¢



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

$5,184,000. The decrease in nonaccrual loans was primarily due to foreclosing .on several pieces of. real estate
securing loans that were on nonaccrual status at December 31, 2008. During 2009, the Bank foreclosed on three
* subdivisions and one motel whose loans were in nonaccrual status at December 31, 2008, resulting in a decrease in
qonaccrual loans and an increase.in other real estate owned of $6,272,000 during 2009. The Bank is actively
marketing the subdivisions for sale, either as individual lots or the subdivision developments as a whole. The Bank
is marketing the motel property for sale while the motel continues to operate through a contractual agreement
between the Bank and a hospitality management company. The Bank has periodically evaluated the market value of

the foreclosed properties through professional appraisals and market evaluations. As a result of these evaluations,

the Company recognized write-downs on foreclosed properties during 2009 totaling $972,000 in 2009 and $14,000
in 2008. In addition, the Company recognized $35,000 in net losses on the sale of other real estate during 20009.

A loan is placed on non-accrual status when, in management’s judgment, the likelihood of collecting interest
appears questionable. As a result of management’s ongoing review of the loan portfolio, loans are classified as non-
accrual generally when they are past duein principal and interest for more than 90 days or it is otherwise not
reasonable to expect collection of principal and interest under the original terms. Exceptions are allowed for 90 day
past due loans when such loans are well secured .and in process of collection or renewal. Generally, payments
received on non-accrual loans are applied directly to principal. ‘

Management regularly monitors the loan portfolio to ensure that all loans are appropriately classified. . Should

economic conditions continue to deteriorate, the inability of distressed customers to service their existing debt could

cause even higher levels of non-performing loans.
Deposits

The Company uses 'dei)osits, primarily to fund its loan and investment portfolios. The Company offers a variety of
deposit accounts to individuals and businesses. Deposit accounts include checking, savings, money market and time

" deposits. As of December 31, 2009, total deposits were $250,442,000, a decrease of $24,596,000 or 8.9% as
compared to the December 31, 2008 balance of $275,038,000. The decrease in deposits is primarily attributable to a
decision by management to lower time deposit rates in order to better match the Bank’s deposit base with loan
demand and to minimize interest expense on time deposits. '

Liquidity ,

The Company must maintain, on a daily basis, sufficient funds to cover the withdrawals from depositors’ accounts
and to supply new borrowers with funds. To meet these obligations, the Company keeps cash on hand, maintains
account balances with its correspondent banks, and purchases and sells federal funds and other short-term
investments. Asset and liability maturities are monitored in an attempt to match these to meet liquidity needs. It is
the policy of the Company to monitor its liquidity to meet local funding and regulatory requirements. N

The Company maintains relationships with correspondent banks that can provide funds to it on short notice, if
needed. Presently, the Company has arrangements with correspondent banks for short term unsecured advances of
up to $5,000,000. Additional liquidity is provided to the Company through Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)
advances.. - C

Cash and cash equivalents increased $4,674,000 to a total of $24,736,000 at year-end 2009 as cash used by
financing activities outpaced amounts provided by operating and investing activities. Cash inflows from operations
totaled $5,635,000 in 2009, while outflows from financing activities totaled $21,235,000, consisting of net deposit
decreases during 2009 of $24,596,000, offset by net increases in securities sold under repurchase agreements of
$3,361,000. '

Investing activities ‘provided $20,274,000 of cash and cash equivalents, principally composed of proceeds from
sales, calls and maturities of investment securities of $144,251°,000, and proceeds from sales of inveStrrient securities
of $12,937,000, partially offset by purchases of investment securities of $143,937,000.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

For maturity and repricing information regarding the Company’s contractual obligations, please see the table under

- the heading “Asset/Liability and Interest Rate Sensitivity Management.” ,

» {

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements -of credit risk in_excess of the amount
recognized on the balance sheet. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of exposure the
Company has in particular classes of financial instruments. At December 31, 2009, the contractual amounts of the
Company’s commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit were $27.410,000 and $570,000,
respectively. - ) '

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition

- established in the contract. . Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and because-they may expire

without being drawn upen, the total commitiment amount ddes not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
Standby letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance

- of a customer to a third party. .

See note 11 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of these risks and- contractual
commitments. ) '

Capital Resources

The following table presents the Bank’s regulatory capital position at December 31, 2009:

Risk-Based Capital Ratios
Actual as of December 31, 2009

Tier 1 Capital ’ ' ' S 12.2%

Tier 1 Capital minimum requiremént» : ‘ 4.0%
Excess ' ‘ 8.2%
" TotalCapital ' . } 13.5%
Total Capital minimum requirement 8.0%
Excess ) ' ) 55% )

~

) ' Co © 8.3%

Leverage ratio
Leverage ratio requirement - 4.0%
Excess ) ‘ C_43%
The f\ollowing table sets out certain ratios of the Company for the years indicated:
C 2009 2008
Net income (loss) to: -
Average sharcholders’ equity | 4.72)% (11.67)% .
Average assets : (0.39% (1.10)%
Dividends to net income - : -
Average equity to average assets : » 8.33% 9.46%

‘For further discussion of the actual and required capital ratios of the Company, see note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements and “Supervision and Regulation — Capital Adequacy.”
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MANAGEMENT’S DIsCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

r

Asset/Liability and Interest Rate Sensitivity Management

It is the Company’s objective to manage assets and liabilities to provide a satisfactory, consistent level of”

profitability within the framework of established cash, loan, investment, borrowing and capital policies: Certain

officers are charged with the responsibility for monitoring policies and procedures that are designed to ensure -

acceptable composition-of the asset/liability mix. It is the overall philosophy of management to support asset
growth primarily through growth of core deposits, which include deposits of all categories’ made by local
‘individuals, partnerships and corporations. The objective of this policy is to control interest sensitive assets and
liabilities so as to minimize the impact of substantial movements in interest rates on earnings. b

The asset/liability mix is monitored on a regular basis.. A report reflecting the interest sensitive assets and interest
sensitive liabilities is prepared and presented to the Board of Directors of the Bank on a monthly basis.

The absolute level and volatility of interest rates can have a significant impact on Oconee’s profitability. The

objective of interest rate risk management is to identify and manage the sensitivity of net interest income to
changing interest rates, in order to achieve Oconee’s overall financial goals. Based on economic conditions, asset
quality and various other considerations, management establishes tolerance ranges for interest rate sensitivity and
manages within these ranges. ~

Oconee uses income simulation modeling as a tool in measuring interest rate risk and managing interest rate
sensitivity. Simulation modeling considers not only the impact of changing market rates of interest on future net
interest income, but also other potential causes of variability. .

‘Interest rate sensitivity is a function of the repricing characteristics of Oconee’s portfolio of assets and liabilities.
These repricing characteristics are the time frames within which the interest earning assets and liabilities are subject
to change in interest tates either at replacement, repricing or maturity during the life of the instruments. Interest rate
sensitivity management focuses on the maturity structures of assets and liabilities and their repricing characteristics
during periods of charige in market interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity is measured as the difference between the
volumes of assets and liabilities in Oconee’s current portfolio that are subject to repricing at various time horizons:
immediate; one to thiee months; four to twelve months; one to five years; over five years, and on a cumulative basis.
The differences are known as interest rate sensitivity gap. o ~

One method to measure a bank’s interest rate exposure is through its repricing gap. The gap is calculated by citing
all liabilities that reprice or taking all assets that reprice or mature within a given time frame and subtracting all
liabilities that reprice or mature within that time frame. ‘The difference between these two amounts is called the
“gap”, the amount of either liabilities-or assets that will reprice without a corresponding asset or liability repricing.

A negative gap (more liabilities repricing than assets) generally indicates that the bank’s net interest income will
decrease if interest rates rise and will increase if interest rates fall. A positive gap generally indicates that'the bank’s
net interest income will decrease if rates fall and will increase if rates rise. '

The following table summarizes the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at
December 31; 2009 that are contractually maturing, prepaying or repricing in each of the future time periods shown.
~ Except as stated below, the amount of assets or liabilities that mature or reprice during a particular period was
determined in accordance with the contractual terms of the asset or liability. Investment securities are reported

based on the adjusted cost basis. Adjustable rate loans are included in the period in which interest rates are next.

scheduled to adjust rather than in the period in which they are due, and fixed rate loans and mortgage-backed
securities are included in the periods in which they are required to be repaid based on scheduled maturities. The
Company’s savings accounts and interest-bearing demand accounts (NOW and money market deposit accounts),
which are generally subject to immediate withdrawal, are included in the “Three Months or Less” category, although
historical experience has proven the rates of these deposits to be more stable over the course of a year.

\
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At Décember 31,2009
Maturing or Repricing in

- ‘ ' . (dollars in thousands)
. Four Months ,
- - Three Months to 1to5 Over 5
, or Less 12 Months Years © Years . Total
Interest-earning assets: : ) P ;
Investment securities $ - $ 879 $ 823 $ - 65201 $ 66,903
Interest-earning due from banks 20,675 - ) - ) - 20,675
Loans - 60,220 29,096 71,057 1,569 © 161,942
Total interest-bearing assets $ 80,895 $ 29,975 $ 71,880 $ 66,770 $ 249 520
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits: : : ,
Savings and demand $ 92987 $ - $ - $ - $ 92,987
Time deposits - ' ’ 40,181 . 68297 20011 - 128,489
Repurchase agreements ‘ 9814 - - - - o 9814
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 142982  § 68,297 $ 20,011 $ - - $ 231,290
Interest sensitive differénce per- (62,087) (38,322) . 51,869 § 66,770 18,230
period $ % - $ $ $
Cumulative interest sensitivity - - : | -
difference - % (62,087) $ (100,409) $  (48,540) $ 18,230
Cumulative ratio of total ) ‘
earning assets to total interest- \ : ‘ - »
bearing liabilities . (56.58%) (52.48%) (79.01%) 108.88%

Note: For purposes of this analysis, nonaccrual loans, overdrafts and unearried interest are not included in Loans.

At December 31, 2009 the difference between the Company’s liabilities and assets repricing or maturing within one
year was $100,409,000. Based on this analysis, due to an excess of liabilities repricing or maturing within one year,
a rise in interest rates would generally cause the Company’s net interest income to decrease, and a decrease in
interest rates would generally cause the Company’s net interest income to increase. :

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although

, certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees
or at different points in time to changes in market interest rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate
mortgages, have features, such as interest rate floors and ceilings that restrict changes in interest rates, both on a
short-term basis and over the life of the asset. - Changes in interest rates, prepayment rates, early withdrawal levels
and the ability of borrowers to service their debt, among other factors, may change significantly from the
assumptions made in the table. In addition, the optionality for callable securities is not factored in the foregoing
table.

The Bank also measures its short-term exposure to interest rate risk by simulating the impact to net interest income
under several rate change levels. Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are rate shocked to stress test
the impact to the Bank’s net interest income and margin. The rate shock levels span four 100 basis point increments
up and down from current interest rates. This information is used to monitor interest rate exposure risk relative to
anticipated interest rate trends. Asset/liability management strategies are developed based on this analysis in an
effort to limit the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk. : :
- The Bank tracks its interest rate sensitivity on a quarterly basis using a model that applies various hypothetical
interest rate changes to various types of interest-bearing deposit accounts. The rate changes represent the Bank’s
inclination to reprice deposit rates based on historical data provided from a call report driven database. In addition,

» -



1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

the model calculates the hkehhood of issuers of investment securities exercising call options on certain investment -

securities as a result of potential interest rate changes as opposed to showmg the mvestment securities being repnced
at their maturities.

N

At December 31, 2009, the difference between the Bank’s liabilities and assets repricing or maturing within one
year, after applymg the hypothetical rate changes to deposit accounts and taking into account the likely calls within

the investment portfolio, was $2,904,000, indicating that the Bank was liability sensitive. The most recent:

simulation modél shows that the Bank’s net interest income would increase $188,000 on an annual basis if rates
increased 100 basis points, and would increase $69,000 on an annual basis if rates fell 100 basis points. Net interest
income increases under both scenarios because the Bank’s assets reprice earlier within the twelve-month period than

_its liabilities. Because of this, the increase in the Bank’s interest income under a rising rate scenario will be greater

than the increase in its interest expense over a twelve-month pemod
Inflation

Inflation impacts the growth in total assets in the banking industry and causes a need to increase equity capital at
higher than normal rates .to meet cap1tal adequacy requirements. The Company copes with the effects of inflation
through the management of its interest rate sensitivity gap position, by periodically reviewing and adjusting its
pricing of servicesto consider current costs, and through managing its level of net earnings relative to its dividend
payout policy. :
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TAULDIN N
&JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors

Oconee Financial Corporation and Sub31d1ary
Watkinsville, Georgia - i
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Oconee Financial Corporation and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

 Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). “Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,.on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Oconee Financial Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2009, and 2008, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity W1th U.S. generally accepted
accountmg principles. ‘

We were not engaged to examine management’s assertion about the effectiveness of Oconee Financial Corporation
and Subsidiary’s internal control ovér financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 included under Item 9A(T)
“Controls and Procedures” in Oconee Financial Corporation and subsidiary’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and,

accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.
: . . ‘
Ao & &&m AC

- Atlanta, Georgia

March 31,2010

200 GALLERIA PARKWAY S.E., SUITE 1700 « ATLANTA GA 30339-5946 « 770-955- 8600 * 800-277-0080 FAX 770- 980-4489 « www.mjcpa.com

Members of The American Institute of Certtﬁed Public Accountants * RSM International #



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DEecemBER 31, 2009 AnD 2008

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2009

- . 2008
Assets :
Cash and due from banks, including reserve .
‘ requirements of $25,000 and $25,000 $  .24736,354 4,353,492
Federal funds sold - . 15,709,000
Cash and.cash equivalents . 24,736,354 20,062,492
Investment securities available for sale . - © 66,903,283 79,761,570
Restricted equity sSecurities ‘ 556,300 679,229
Loans held for sale L= ’ 1,638,561 °
Loans, net i ' 176,340,490 191,557,145
Premises and equipment, net 6,312,968 - 6,903,890
Other real estate owned i 1 6,915,161 1,781,905
Accrued interest receivable and other assets ~ 3,534,444 5,770,757
- $ 285 ,299’,000 308,155,549
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits: ‘ )
Demand $ 28957212 27,413,165
Interest-bearing demand 55,249,265 71,333,508
Savings - 37,746,943 38,011,673
Time 128,488,898 138,279,806
Total deposits . ' 250,442,318 275,038,152
Securities sold under.repurchase agreements 9,814,023 6,453,272
Accrued interest payable ‘and other liabilities 357,046 866,937
Total liabilities 260,613,387 282,358,361
Stockholders’ €quity:
Common stock, par value $2, authorized 1,500,000 shares, - ,
“issued and outstanding 899,815 shares 1,799,630 1,799,630
Additional paid-in capital 4243332 4,243,332
Retained earnings 18,301,063 19,500,772
Acc_:umula_fed other comprehensive income ) 341,588 253,454
Total stockholders’ equity 24,685,613 25,797,188
v $ 308,155,549 °

285,299,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS ]
For THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AnD 2008

Interest income: .
Interest and fees on loans - : .3
Interest.on federal funds sold
“Interest and dividends on securities:
U. S. government agencies
State, county and municipal .
Other

Total interest income

Interest expense: BN
Interest—béaring demand deposits
Savings deposits
Time deposits

Other

o~

~

Total interest expense
Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
/

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Other income: : -
Service charges ‘
Gain on sale of securities
Impairment loss on restricted equity securities
- Mortgage origination fee income
Income on other real estate owned
Miscellaneous )

Total other income
Other expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy .«
Other operating
Total other expenses
Loss before income tax benefit
Incomé tax benefit

" Net loss . ' o - $

Net loss per share . ' \ $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2009 2008
9,591,830 11317394
931 288246 "
2,708 371 3,489,145
685,629 845,679
134,339 143,491
13,121,100 16083955
462,688 1,272,076
456,869 748,969
4,591,829 5,900,965
368,341 178,999 -
5879727 8,101,009
7241373 7982946
. v
2,140000 - 7.463,000
5101373 519946
1295341 1523231
250,720 215,129
(100 429) ;
365,893 350,955
583,609 4200
866,710 871222
3261844 2,964,737
4,922,744 5,311,899
" 1351,865 1434168
4,358,146 2912204
10,632,755 9,658.271
(2’,269,538) (6,173,588) -
(1069,829)  (2,747,229)
(1,199709)  (3.426,359)-
(1.33) (3.81)




 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

Net loss

Other compfehensive income (loss), net of income tax€s_(benefit):

Unrealized gains on securities-available for sale:
Holding gains arising during period, net of tax .
expense of $149,099 and $13,633
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
loss, net of taxes of $95,173 and $81,663

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

" Comprehensive income (loss)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

\

2009 2008

$ (1,199,709) - (3426,359)
© 243,681 22,281
(155,547) (133 466)
88,134 (111,185)

$ (1,111,575)  (3.537,544)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 anD 2008

5

-

- Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-In Retained - Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
Balance;, December 31, 2007 $ 1,799,630 4,243,332 22,927,13f ‘ 364,639 29,334,732
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) /
on investment securities available ‘ -
for sale, net of tax_ - - - (111,185) (111,185)
3 ) . .
‘Net loss ‘ o - - (3,/426,359) . - (3.426,359)
Balance, December 31, 2008 . v 1,799,630 4,243,332 19,500,772 253,454 25,797,188
Change in net unrealized gaih (loss)
on investment secur_ities available = .
for sale, net of tax . - - - 88,134 88,134
Net loss I ) - - (1,199,709) - -(1,199,709)
Balance, December 31, 2009 ’ $ 1,799,630 42437332 18,301,063 341,588 24,685 613

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOws
For THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion -
-Provision for loan losses
Provision for deferred taxes -
Gains on sale of investment securities, net
Impairment loss on restricted equity securities
Loss on sale and disposal of fixed assets
~ Loss on other real estate '
Change in:
. Accrued interest receivable and other assets. '
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Mortgage loans originated and held for sale

Net cash provided (used) by E)perating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from calls and maturities of 1nvestment securities

available for sale '
" Proceeds from sales of investment securities available

"~ forsale
Redemption of restricted equity securities
Net change in loans
Purchases of premises and equlpment
Proceeds from sales of other real estate )

Net cash provided by investing activities

* Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in deposits
Net change in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Dividends paid '

- Net cash used by financing activities
_Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
“Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

“ Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2009 2008
(1,199,709)  (3.426,359)
615,582 651,941
2,140,000 7,463,000
94,357 (13,119)
(250,720) (215,129)
- 100429 -
3,660 -
. 1,006,706 -
1996442 (4299415)
- (509.891) (395.658)
1638561 - (575378)
5635417 (810,117)
(143936,574) - (28.916,088)
144,251 462 31,936,266
12,937,169 8,742,800
22,500 27,500 .
6,177,128  (2,524,705)
(29,309) (216,176)
851,152 - 157,306
20,273,528 - 9.206903
(24,595.834)  (11486416) -
3.360,751 "3,296,972
- (1,034,787)
(21,235,083) (9,224 .231)
. 4,673,862 (827445)
20062492 20,889,937
24,736,354 20062492
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
For THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 anD 2008

Suppleméntal disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
- Interest )
Income taxes

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Change in net unrealized gain on investment
securities available for sale, net of tax
Transfer of loans to other real estate
Transfer of other real estate to loans
Change in dividends payable

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

© A
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2009

6,049,373

. (2,623.240)

88,134
7,177,958
278,431

2008

8,464,094
281,500

(111,185)
1935325,

1,034,787



NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,(1)_

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization ’ .
Oconee Financial Corporatlon (“OFC”) received regulatory approval to operate as a bank holding company Qn

October 13, 1998, and began operations effective January 1, 1999. OFC is primarily regulated by the Federal"
" Reserve Bank, and serves as the one-bank holding company for Oconee State Bank.

Oconee State Bank (the “Bank”) commenced business in 1960 upon receipt of its banking charter from the Georgia
Department of Banking and Finance (the “DBF”). The Bank is primarily regulated by the DBF and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and undergoes periodic examinations by these regulatory agencies. The Bank
provides a full range of commercial and consumer banking services primarily in Oconee and Clarke counties in
Georg1a

On September 17, 2008, Putters, Inc. was incorporated as a 100% owned sub51d1ary of the Bank. Putters, Inc. was
formed as a real estate holding company for a residential subdivision that was foreclosed on by the bank subsequent
to the incorporation of Putters, Inc.. On May 28, 2009, Putters, Inc.’s name was changed to Real Estate Holdings
Georgia, Inc. The subsidiary continues to be used as a real estate holdmg company to hold residential real estate
subdivision on which the bank has foreclosed.

On December 18, 2008, Motel Holdings Georgia, Inc. was mcorporated asa 100% owned sub51dlary of the Bank.
Motel Holdings Georgia, Inc. was formed as a real estate holding company for a motel that was foreclosed on by

. the bank in January 2009. The motel is an operatmg motel managed by an independent th&rd party. The operations

of the motel are included in our statements of operat1ons since the date of foreclosure.

Prmcmles of Consolidation ' )

‘The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Oconee Financial Corporation and its

wholly owned subsidiary, Oconee State Bank and the subsidiaries of the Bank (collectively called the “Company”)
All s1gn1flcant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

The accounting principles followed by the Company, and the methods of applying these pr1nc1ples conform with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™) and with general practices in
the banking industry. In preparing the financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is requiréd to
make estimates and assumptions_that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Actual results could
differ significantly from these estimates. Material estimates common to the banking industry that are particularly
susceptible to significant change in the near term include, but are not limited to, the determination of the allowance
for loan losses, deferred taxes, fair value of financial instruments, other than temporary 1mpa1rment on securities,

and valuation of real estate acquired in connectlon with or in lieu of foreclosure on loans.
Ay

Cash and Cash Equivalents .

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash, and cash equlvalents include cash and due from banks and federal funds
sold. Included-in cash and due from banks is interest-bearing deposits at other banks of $20,675,256 and $9,720 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Investment Securmes
The Company classifies its securities in one of three categones trading, available for sale, or held to maturity.

Trading securities are bought and held principally for sale inthe near term. Held to maturity securities are those .

securities for which. the Company has the ability and intent to hold the security until maturity. All other securities
not included in trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale.

\
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Available for sale securities aré recorded at fair value. Unrealized holdmg gains and losses, net of the related tax
effect, on securities availible for sale are excluded from operations and are reported as a separate component of -
stockholders’ _equity until realized. The Company recognizes other than temporary impairment (OTTI) loss in
earnings only when the Company (1) iftends to sell the debt security; (2) more likely than not will be required to
sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis or (3) does not expect to recover the entire amortized
cost basis of the security. In situations when the Company intends to sell or more likely than not will be required to
sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the entire OTTI loss is recognized in earnings. In all
other situations, only the portion of the OTTI losses representing the credit loss is recognized in earnings, with the
remaining portion being recognized in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes.

Premiums and discounts are amomz,ed or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to the yield.
Realized gains and lossés for securities classified as available for sale are included i in earnings on the trade date
and are derived using the specific 1dent1flcat10n method for determining the cost of securities sold.

Other Investments -

Other investments include other equity securities. No ready market exists for these securities and there is no quoted
fair value. These investment securities are carried at cost. Management reviews for impairment based on the
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in these stocks. o

Loans Held for Sale ~

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the carrying
amount of mortgage loans held for sale approximates the market value. Loans held for sale consist of mortgage
loans which have commitments to be sold to third party mvestors upon-closing.

Loans and Allowance for I.oan Losses

Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, less net deferred origination fees ar costs.and the allowance
for loan losses. Interest on loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on daily balances of the principal
amount outstanding. The Bank analyzes its direct costs associated with the origination of different types of loans.
Any fees collected that are greater than the costs calculated by the bank are recogmzed as income over the life of
the loan as opposed to at the time of origination. ,

Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash ﬂows discounted at the loan’s .
effective interest rate, or at the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that all
principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan will not be collected. Interest’on accruing
impaired loans is-recognized as long as such loans do not meet the criteria for nonaccrual status. - =

Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after considering economic conditions and
collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful. Interest
previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period earnings and interest is recognized on‘a cash
basis when such loans are placed on non-accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal
and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and futire payments are reasonably assured.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes-the uncollectibility of the principal is
confirmed. The allowance represents-an amount which, in management’s Judgment will be adequate to absorb
probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. - ~ .

Management’s judgment in determining the adequacy of the allowance is based on evaluations of the collectibility
of loans. These evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, current economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to pay, overall portfolio quality and
review of specific problem loans. The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The
specific component ‘relates to loans that.are identified as impaired. The general component covers non-impaired
loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is
maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The unallocated
component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio. Management uses an external loan review
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0} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
program to challenge and corroborate the internal grading system and provide additional analysis in determining the
adequacy of the allowance and provisions for estimated loan losses. S

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may
be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part
of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may
require the Company to recognize additions .to the allowance based on judgments different than' those of
management. o !

Premises and Equipment 5 . ” :

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed primarily using
the straight-line method overthe estimated useful lives of the asséts. Leasehold improvements are amortized over
the shorter period of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets-are retired or otherwise disposed, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is reflected in
operations for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend the useful life of the
respective asset is charged to earnings as incurred, whereas significant improvements are capitalized. The range of
estimated useful lives for premises and equipment are generally as follows:

Buildings and improvements . L ' 5 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment - o . 3-10years .
Other Real Estate -

Properties acquired through foreclosure are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to dispose.
Accounting guidance defines fair value as the amount that is expected to be received in a current sale between a
willing buyer and seller other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair values at foreclosure are based on appraisals. -
Losses arising from the -acquisition’ of foreclosed properties are charged against the allowance for loan losses.
Subsequent write-downs are provided by a charge to operations through the allowance for losses on other real estate
in the period in which the need arises. ‘ N : ~

Transfers of Financial Assets : : :
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company - put
presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return
specific assets. ) Co

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements - ) .
Securities sold under repurchase agreements are treated as financing activities, and are carried at the amounts at
which the securities will be repurchased as specified in the respective agreements.

Inqomé Taxes . :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Additionally, the recognition of future tax benefits, such as net operating loss carryforwards, is required to the
extent that realization of suchibenefits is more likely than not. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the assets and liabilities are expected to
be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

In the event the future tax consequences of differences between the financial reporting bases and the tax bases of the
- Company’s assets and liabilities result in deferred tax assets, an evaluation of the probability of being able to realize

the future benefits indicated by such assets is required. A valuation allowance is provided for the portion of ‘the

deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be
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(1), Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

realized. In assessing the realizability of the deferred tax assets, management considers the scheduled reversals of -
deferred tax liabilities; projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the recent accounting guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes, which sets out'a consistent framework to determine the appropriate level of tax reserves to maintain
Jfor uncertain tax positions.

Mortgage Banking Ihcome . .
Mortgage origination fee income represenfs net gains from ‘the sale of mortgage loans and fees received. from

borrowers related to the Bank’s origination of single-family residential mortgage loans. .

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Earnings (loss) per common share are based on the Welghted average number of common shares outstanding during
the year while the effects of potential common shares outstanding during the period are included in diluted earnings
per share. The Company had no potential common share equivalents outstanding during 2009 and 2008. For each
of those years, loss per share is calculated using the weighted average shares outstanding during the years of
899,815. ’
N Comprehensive Loss

Accounting principles generally reguire that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net loss.
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities,

- are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, suoh items, along with net Joss, are
components of comprehensive loss. ‘

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On June 29, 2009; the FASB issued ASCI105, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, an accounting
pronouncement establishing the” FASB Accounting Standards Codification™- (the “ASC”) as the source of
authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities. This
pronouncement was effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September
15, 2009, for most entities. On the effective date, all non-SEC accounting and reporting standards will be
superseded. The Company. adopted this new accounting pronouncement for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
required, and adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements taken as a whole.

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued three related accounting pronouncements intended to provide additional
+ application guidance and enhance disclosures regarding fair value measurements and impairments of securities. In
particular, these pronouncements: (1) provide guidelines for making fair value measurements more consistent with
the existing accounting principles when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have decreased
significantly; (2) enhance consistency in financial reporting by increasing the frequency.of fair value disclosures and
(3) modify existing general standards of accounting for and dlsclosure of other-than-temporary 1mpa1rment (“OTTT)
losses for impaired debt securities. - :
Both of these pronouncements were effective for interim and annual periods endmg after June 15, 2009 Entities
were permitted to early adopt the proyisions of these pronouncements for interim and annual periods ending after
March 15, 2009, but had to adopt all three concurrently. The Company adopted these provisions of these
pronouncements for the year ended December 31, 2009, as required, and adoption did not have a matenal impact on
the financial statements taken as a whole.

i
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(2) Regulatoi‘y Matters and :Management‘s Plan ef Action

Overall Summary of Results

The Company has incurred net losses from operations of $1.2 million and $3.4 million for the two years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008. During the same periods the Company has reported net cash provided by (used in)
operations of $5.5 million-and ($810,000). During 2009 management made strategic moves to address concerns
raised by regulators including shrinking the Bank’s total assets and loans, as both have a direct impact on regulatory
~ capital ratios. At December 31, 2009 the Bank meets the required levels of capital to be considered well capitalized
under regulatory guidelines, however due to the regulatory order dlscussed below the Bank is considered adequately
capitalized- . . ‘

.Regulatory Over51ght

" As reported to shareholders durmg the third quarter of 2009, the Bank entered into a Stipulation and Consent to the
Issuance of an Order to Cease and Desist (the “Consent Agreement™) with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation -

(the “FDIC”) and the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance (the “GDBF”), whereby the Bank consented to
the issuance of an Order to Cease and Desist (the “Order”). Among other things, the Order prov1des that, unless
otherwise agreed by the FDIC and GDBF: -

"o the Bank must have and maintain a Tier 1 (Leverage) Capital ratio of not less than 8% and a Total Risk-based
Capital ratio of at least 10%; - '
e ‘the Bank must formulate a written plan to reduce the Bank’s adversely classified assets in accordance w1th a
defined asset reduction schedule;
¢ the Bank may not pay a cash dividend to Oconee Financial Corpbration; ,
e the Bank must revise its budget and include formal goals and strategies to improve the Bank’s net interest
_margin, increase interest income, reduce discretionary expenses-and improve and $ustain earmngs of the Bank;
‘e the Board of Directors of the Bank must review the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses (the
““ALLL”) and establish a comprehensive policy for determining the adequacy of the ALLL;
e the Bank may not-accept, renew or rollover brokered deposits without obtaining a brokered deposit waiver from
the FDIC.

As of December 31, 2009, the Bank was in compliance with all directives of the Order. Compliance with the consent
order is monitored by a committee made up of members of the Board of Directors of the Company. Fallure to
comply with the Order could result in further regulatory action and oversight.

Capital Adequacy . . -

As of December 31, 2009, the Bank was considered "adequately capitalized" . as defined by federal capital
regulations. Regulatory capital is a measure of a financial institution's soundness. Note 13, Regulatory Matters,

- presents and discusses more fully the Bank's capital levels. In response to the Order, the Board of Directors has
authorized management to begin the process of raising additional capital through a stock offering. Management has
begun the preparation of the offering document which tentatively is expected to offer a minimum of 35,000 and
maximum of 450,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Upon completion of the management’s due diligence
and research, the Board of Directors will formally vote on whether or not to proceed with. the stock offermg based on
the Bank’s capital position and potentlal need for addmonal capital.

Asset Quality

The losses teported in 2009 and’ZOQS ‘are.primarily the result of significant provisions for loan losses, additional
expenses related to foreclosed assets, reductions in interest income related to the increase in non-performing loans
and an interest margin which has been impacted by the lowest interest rates in decades. The provision for loan losses
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $2.1 million and $7.5 million, respectively. As of December
31, 2009 impaired and nonaccrual loans were down $11 million, and net charge-offs were down $3.7 million
compared to the year ended December 31, 2008, while other real estate owned increased by $5.1 million. Impaired

- NOILYHOdYOD TYIDNYNIZ 33NODO

25



NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

. (2) Regulatory Matters and Management's Plan of Action, continued -

loans and foreclosed assets, alihough currently carried at the lower of cost or fair value, could likely impact future

earnings through additional write-downs if the real estate market continues to decline as it has in 2008 and 2009.

Management contmually evaluates these assets and recognizes losses as confirmed. _ e

Liquidity g

~ The Bank actively manages and monitors liquidity on a daily basis. At December 31, 2009 the Bank’s liquidity ratio
was 22.5% which is adequate based on the Bank’s policy and acceptable by the regulators considering the minimal
amount of brokered deposits held by the Bank. The Bank has been able to maintain a stable deposit base throughout
2009 and management anticipates this to continue in 2010. The FDIC's temporary changes to increase the amount of
deposit insurance to $250,000 per deposit relationship and to ptovide unlimited deposit insurance for certain
transaction accounts under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program ("TLGP") have contributed to the Bank's
stable deposit bise. However, the TLGP program is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2010 which could impact the
Bank's ability to retain previously insured transaction accounts above $250,000 if the program is not extended.
Despite these challenges, the Bank expects to maintain a sound liquidity position throughout 2010.
As noted above, the Bank is working in full compliance with the Order and is actively working toward returning to
profitable operations. However, if operating losses were to continue to occur, these events could have a material and
advérse effect on the Company's results of operations and finangial position.

3 Investment Securities
Investment securities avallable for sale at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Gross Gross
o Amortized Unrealized - Unrealized -  Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
~ Securities Available for Sale '
December 31, 2009:
Debt securities:
- U.S. Government and federal agency:
U.S. Government-sponsored . '
enterprises (GSEs)* $ 28,989,082 $ 191,702 $ (226,629) $ 28,954,155
Corporate 1,617,611 - (133,300) 1484311
Mortgage-backed: . . '
T : GSE residential - 24.522 979 800,214 . (12,795) 25,310,398
State, county, municipal 11,223,018 124977 + 193,576 11,154,419

Total debt securities . 66,532,690 1,116,893 (566,300) 66,903,283
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-
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
: . Cost ~ Gains Losses Value
" December 31, 2008: : .
Debt securities:
U.S. Government and federal agency:
U.S.'Government-sponsored o ’ i
enterprises (GSEs)* - $37,171,757  © $. 959666 - $ - $ 38,131,423
. .Corporate 1,620,067 - (158,461) 1,461,606
~  Mortgage-backed: ' . ‘ ; ' p
GSE residential 22,846,975 517,867 (790) 23,364,052
- State, county, municipal 17,714 238 84212 (993,961) 16,804,489

Total debt securities S 79,353,037 1,561,745 (1,153212) - 79,761,570
* Such as Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatlon and
Federal Home Loan Banks.

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have

been in a-centinuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows:
. < : ) .

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months ~
" Gross Gross Total
, . Unrealized Fair . Unrealized Fair Unrealized -
Available for Sale Securities Losses ’ Value. Losses Value Losses
‘December 31, 2009: : ' C
Debit securities
U.S. Government and
federal agencies: : ,
GSEs 8 226629 $ 16378577 $ - % - S 226,629
Corporate bonds - ) - 133,300 1,484,311 133,300
Mortgage-backed securities: - ’ : }
GSE residential 39,291 - 5,861,084 -7 . - © 39,291
State, county, municipal 71,729 2,117,963 -~ 95351 1,178,181 167,080
Total debt securities 337,|649 : 24 357,624 - 228,651 2,662,492 566,300
~
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(3) Investment Securities, continued

" Less Than Twelve Moriths Over Twelve Months
Gross Gross Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
" Available for Sale Securities Losses _Value — Losses - Value Losses
December 31, 2008: S
Debt securities '
U.S. Government and
federal agencies: o :
Corporate bonds $ 158461 $ 1,620,067 $ - - 3 158,461
Moitgage-backed securities: , :
GSE residential : 790 v208,311 . . - - 790 -
State, eounty, municipal 907,749 10,033,908 - 86,212 692,675 993,961
Total debt securities 1,067,000 12,662,286 86,212 692,675 1,153,212

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2009,.by contractual
_maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers. have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Due within one year

Due from one to five years
Due from five to ten years
Due after ten years
Mortgage-backed securities

o~
-

The proceeds from the sales and gross gains and gross losses realized by the Company from sales of investment

- Amortized Estimated =
Qost ) Fair Value

$ 430000 436,037
410,248 414,309
- 12,709,671 12,758,979
28,279,792 27,983,560
24522979 25,310,398

$

66,352,690

66,903,283

securities for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows

2009 2008
~ Proceeds from sales $ , 12,937,169’ 8,742,800
Gross gaiﬁs realized $ 250,720 215,129
Gross losses realized - -
Net ga\in realized -3 : 250,7é0 ' ~215,129

Securities with a carrying value of approximatel}‘/ $50,976,000 and"$63,014,000 at December.31, 2009 and’20(v)8, ‘
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required by law.
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(3) Investment Securities, continned . -

Restricted equity securities consist of the following:

December 31,

2009 . 2008 .

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock % 556300 . 578,800
‘Silverton Financial Services, Inc. Stock - - 100,429
‘ $ 556,300 ' 679,229

During the second quarter of 2009, the Com\[)any recorded an other than temporary impairment charge of $100,429

on its investment in Silverton Financial Services, Inc. restricted equity securities. The value of these securities was
determined to be totally impaired after Silverton Bank was placed in receivership in May 2009..

Management evaluates securities for othér-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. - '

The unrealized losses on these debt securities in a continuous loss position for twelve months or more as of -

December 31, 2009 and 2008 are considered to be temporary because they arose due to changing interest rates and
the repayment sources of principal and interest are government backed or are securities of investment grade issuets.
Included in the table above as of December 31,2009 were 10 out of 27 securities issued by state and political
sibdivisions that contained unrealized losses, 14 of 24 securities issued by government sponsored agencies, 3 of 28
mortgage-backed securities, and 2 of 2 other debt securities that contained unrealized losses.

GSE debt securities. The unrealized losses on the fourteen investments in GSEs ‘were caused by interest rate
increases. The contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less
than the amortized cost bases of the investments. Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and

it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their-.

amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company. does not consider those investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2009.

Corporate bonds. The Company’s unrealized losses on investments in two corporate bonds relates to investments
in companies within the financial services sector. The unrealized losses are primarily-caused by recent decreases in

~ profitability and profit forecasts by industry analysts. The Company currently does not believe it is probable that it

\

will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the investments. Because the
Company does not intend to sell the investment and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required
to. sell the investments before recovery of its par value, which- may be maturity, it does not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily 1mpa1red at December 31, 2009.
.

GSE residential mortgage-backed securities. The unrealizéd losses on the: Company s investment in three GSE
mortgage-backed securities were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of those investments
are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. Governmert. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities would not be

settled at a price less than the amortized cost bases of the Company’s investments. Because the dechne in market -

value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to
sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments
before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those
investments to-be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2009.

State and municipal securities. The unrealized losses for twelve months or longer relates to 10 municipal .
securities. The unrealized losses are primarily caused by securities no longer being insured and/or ratings being
withdrawn given the current economic environment, as well as changes in interest rates. Because the Company
does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the,Company will be required to sell
the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not
consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2009. "

/
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C))

Loans ~ ) / -
Major classifications of loans at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows:

2009 2008

Commercial, financial and agr1cultura1 . $ 28,392,933 28,028,762
Real estate — mortgage ’ 114252957 105459965
Real estate — commercial construction - - . 29,567,486 51,567,771
Real estate — consumer construction 801,464 2,897,623
Consurher . 6,768,441 7,836,864

Total ioans - ’ ) . © 179,783,281 195,790,985
Deferred fees and costs, net ) ‘ , A 54,50\1 o 18,578
Less allowance for loan losses \ ' ‘ (3497,292) (4,215,262)

Total net loans ‘ ] ] ‘ $ 176,340,490 191,557,145

Vs

The Bank grants loans and exténsions of credit primarily to individuals and a variety of firms and corperations'

- located in certain Georgia counties including Oconee and Clarke. Although the Bank has 4 diversified loan

portfolio, a substantial portion of the loan portfolio is ¢ollateralized by improved and unimproved real estate and is

- dependent upon the real estate market in the Bank’s primary market area.

At December 31,2009 and 2008, the recorded investment in-loans that were considered to be impaired and on
nonaccrual wads approximately $17,706000 and $28,772,000, respectively. Included in this amount was
$7,200,000 and $9,803,000 of impaired loans at December 31, 2009 and-2008, respectively, for which there is no
related allowance for loan losses. Impaired loans at December 31, 2009 and 2008 also included $10,474,000 and
$18.969,000 of impaired loans for which the related allowance for loan losses was $1,143.000 and $1,438,000,

“respectively. In addition, the Company had approximately $0 and $24,000 in loans past due more than ninety days

and still accruing interest at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These accounts were deemed to be well
collateralized and in the process of collection. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was approximately $25,558 000 and- $16,478 000, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the interest recognized on impaired loans was 1mmater1a1

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, troubled debt restructurings were $0 and $4, 351 000,
respectively. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had loans totaling $0 and’ $4,351,000 that were
modified in troubled debt 'restrueturings and impaired. In years subsequent to a modification, loans that are
performmg in accordance with their mod1ﬁed terms are not reported as impaired loans.

Changes in therallowance for loan losses were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

. . 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year ‘ - . ’ $ 4215262 3,335,825
Provision for loan losses ' ’ 2,340,000 7,463,000
Amounts charged off ~ ~~ (2,943,798) (6,625,721)
Recoveries on amounts previously charged off ) 85,828 42,158
Balance at end of year $ 3497292 4,215,262
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6] Premlses and Equipment
Major classifications of prermses and equipment are summanzed as follows:

December 31,

1’ o ) » 2009 . 2008
Land . : . : % 1,354,181 1,354,181
Buildings and improvements ) . o . 5,947,419 5,936,622
Furniture and equipment : . 5,879,896 5,881,342
Leasehold improvements - 115,673 115,673

. o 13,297,169 13,287,818
Less accumulated depreciation 6,984,201 6,383,928
‘ ' $ 6,312,968 - 6,903,890

Depreciation expense was $616,571 and $706,382 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Future minimum leasé payments under current operating leases pertalmng to banking premises and equlpment at
December 31,2009, are as follows:

N

Years Ending December 31,

2010 $ 152,707
2011 -7 139,084
2012 ) ' ' 140,874 _
2013 . : ‘ . 142,699
2014 v - 144,560
Thereafter C - 207,984 ‘
." Total minimum lease payments * $ 927,908 _

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $162,336 and $1 59',450, respectively.

(6) Other Real Estate ‘ : .

. »
A summary of foreclosed assets are presented as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
. ' ' 2009 ‘ 2008

Balance, beginning of year . - $ ‘ 1,781,905 $ 1

Additions 7,177,958 1,935,325
Disposals T (851,152) - - (155.920)
Charge-offs - (971.839) (13,850)
.z -Internally financed sales T , : (278.431) -
Capitalized expenses . 7 - 91,587 ’ 16,349

Gain (loss) on sale ~ : “(34,867) -

- Balance, énd of year ) $ 6,915,161 - $ 1,781,905

¢

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 deferred gains on sales of foreclosed real estate of $40,000 and $10 000 are
, included in the balance sheet as a reduction of loans -

- ' .
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(6) Other Real Estate, cohtinued

Expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following:

N

" Years Ended December 31,

, 2009 2008
Net_lolsxs (gain) on sales of real estate $ (34.867) -
Provision for losses g v ) - -

Operating expenses, net of rental income ‘ - 229,681 254489
’ ' T8 194 814 -$ 254 489

(7) Deposnts :
The aggregate amounts of certlﬁcates of "deposit, each W1th a minimum denomination of $100,000, were
approximately $52,535,000 and $71,244,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company had
brokered time deposits at December 31,2009 and 2008 of $9,397 000 and $17,979,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2009, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposits are as follows:

2010 : -~ $ 108458472

2011 ‘ : i ‘ 16,760,377 -
2012 ‘ 750,387.

2013 R 503,572

2014 : . 2,016,090
| s 128488898

At December 31, 2009, theBank had concentrations of deposits of approximately $30,669,000 and $28,699.,000
with two customersy These deposits are with customers that have been customers of the Bank for several years and
are expected to remain with the Bank for the foreseeable future.
(8) Income Taxes
- The components of income tax beneflt in the statements of operations are as follows

Current benefit . - $ (975472) (2,699,668)
Deferred o - . i (94357) (13,119)
- Total income tax benefit $ (1,069,829) (2,712,787)

The differences between income tax benefit and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax
rate to losses before income benefit are as follows: N

Pretax loss at statutory rates B $ (771,643)  (2,099,020)
Add (deduct): : : , ~ ~
Tax exempt interest income . ‘ - (234,021) . (288,919)
Non-deductible interest expense V . o 20,389 - . 33,751
Statetaxes, net of federal effect ) (197,018) (442.,801)

Other - : . - : ' 112 464 84202
‘ ' $  (1.069.829) (2,712.787)
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(8) Income Taxes, continued
The following summarizes the sources and expected tax consequences of future taxable deductions (income) which
comprise the net deferred tax asset. The net deferred tax asset is a component of other assets at December 31, 2009

and 2008.
o 2009 2008
Deferred income tax assets: . ’ :
Allowance for loan losses = - $ 769,403 1,164,777
Other real estate . . 1 224,045 14,062
Other . o : 184,130 -
= Total gross deferred income tax assets : 1,177,578 1,178,839
Deferred income tax liabilities: ‘
Unrealized gains on investment securities avallable for sale (209,005) (155,079)
Premises and equipment s : : (353,575) © (449,192)
Total gross deferred income tax lfabilities ~(562,580) (604.271)
Net deferred income tax asset ; ‘ $ 614,998 574,568

. (9) Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, which are secured borrowings, generally mature within one to four
days from the transaction date. Securities sold under repurchase agreements-are reflected at the amount of cash
received in connection with the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based

. on the fair value of the underlying securities. The Company monitors the fair value of the underlying securities on
a daily basis. Securities sold under repurchase agreements at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $9,814,000 and
$6.,453,000, respectively. g

(10) Related Party Transactions
The Company conducts transactions with directors and executive officers, including companies in which they have
beneficial interests, in the normal course of business:. It is the policy of the Company that loan transactions with
directors and officers are made on substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time made for comparable
loans to other persons. The following is a summary of activity for related party loans: ' '

December 31,

o : . 7 2009 2008
Beginning balance N ' o $ 6,958,101 7,550,279
New loans o : - T 2,747,985 1,970,123
Repaymients - , (1,178978)  (2,562,301)
Change in related parties : . S (4459092) -
- Ending balance < . - % 4068016 6,958,101

Deposrts from related parties totaled approximately $5,794,000 and $6,833,000 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
respectively.

(11) Commitments and Contingencies

“The Company.is a party to.financial instruments with off- balance-sheet risk in the normal course of busmess to .

meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the
amount recoghized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of
involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments. '
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NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(11) Commitments and Contingencies, continued

The exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for .
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments. The Company uses the same- credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it
does for on-balance-sheet instruments. Im most cases, the Company does require collateral or other security to
support financial instruments with credit risk. -

.

“

Contractual Amount
Financial instruments whose contract : ‘ (in thousands)
amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit . ’ ’ ' 3 27410 26,153
Standby letters of credit - $ 570° 661

N

LCommitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to-a customer as-long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total

" commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Bank, upon extensiod of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may 1nclude
unlmproved and improved real estate, cernflcates of deposit, or personal property.

Standby letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to businesses in the Company s delineated
trade area. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending
loan facilities to customers. The Company holds real estate, equipment, automobiles and customer deposits as
collateral supporting those commitments for which collategal is deemed necessary.

The Company had $5,000,000 and $7,000,000 available for the purchase of overnight federal funds from two
~ correspondent financial institutions as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Contingencies - S

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various legal -proceedings. “In the opinion of
management, any lability resulting from such proceedings would not have a material effect on the Company S
financial statements.

(12) Profit Sharing Plan .
The Company has a contributory proﬁt sharing plan which is available to substantially all employees subject to
certain age and service requirements. Contributions to the plan are determined annually by the Board of Directors.

~ The total contributions by the Company for 2009 and 2008 were $71,764 and $227 367, respectively. The Board of

Directors.suspended this plan indefinitely effective July 1, 2009.

(13). Regulatory Matters
The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practlces The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. '

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require thé’Company and the Bank to
- maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted -

-
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13)

Regulatory Matters, continued
assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets (all as deﬁned) Management believes, as’of December 31, 2009 and
2008, the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized
the Bank as adequately capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized
as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios
as set forth in the following tables and also must not be subject to any written agreement, order, capital directive, or

prompt corrective action directive issued by federal banking regulators.

¢
v

- The capital ratios for the Company are essentlally the same as those of the Bank Therefore only the Bank’s capital

14

(as)

ratios are presented in ‘the following table (dollars in thousands):

To Be Well
v Capitalized Under .
For Capital Prompt Corrective
) . Actual Adequacy Purposes  Action Provisions
. Amount' Ratio Amount = Ratio  Amount Ratio
‘As of December 31, 2009: ' ‘
Total Capital - : :
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) - " $ 26,721 135% $ 15878 80% $ 19,848 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital . N ]
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 24228 122% $ . 7939 40% $ 11909 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital ‘ ‘
(to Average Assets) $ 24228 83% $ 11,709 40% .$ 14637 50%
As of December 31,2008:
Total Capital : ’ -
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 28095 130% $ ¥/334 80% $ 21,667 .100%
Tier 1 Capital - o ' ' - ‘
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 25368 A17% $ 8,667 40% $ 13,000 6.0%
Tier'1 Capital ) ' , ’
(to Average Assets) $ 25368 81% $ - 12,529 40% $ 15662 350%

Stockholders’ Equity
Dividends paid by the Bank are the prlmary source of funds available to the Company for payment of dividends to
its stockholders and for other working capital needs. Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be
paid- without prior approval of the regulatory authorities. These restrictions are based on the level of regulatory
classified assets, the prior year’s net earnings, the ratio of equity capital to total assets, and other specific regulatory
restrictions. At December 31,2009, no dividends could be declared without regulatory approval.

- . - A
Fair Value Disclosures
Fair Value Measurements ,
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, which provides a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting
principles. FASB ASC Topic 820 applies to all financial instruments that are being measured and reported on a fair

)

value basis. . . -
Al

The fair value of a financial insttument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best
determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for
the Company’s various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by
the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument. ' -

PR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(15) Fair Value Disclosures, continued

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an
orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) -between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level
of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques_may
be appropriate. -In such instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at the
measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of
significant judgment. The fair value is a teasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions.

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and
to determine fair value disclosures. Securities available-for-sale and loans held for sale are recorded at fair value on
arecurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets
on a nonrecurring basis, such as impaired loans and foreclosed property. R
Under FASB ASC Topic 820, the Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels, based on the
markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptlons used to determine fair

* value. These levels are:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to
access at the measurement date. :

Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be. corroborated
by observable market data. ~

Level 3 — Generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant asSumption based on
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is
little, if any, related market activity. In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on

_inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire

fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
enurety requires Judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following methods and assumptions were used to, estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments
for which it is practicable to estimate that value: :

Securities Available;—for—Sale: Securities available-for-sale_are recorded 4t fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value
measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are méasured
using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future
cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss
assumptions. Level 1 securities include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange,
U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the- counter markets and money market
funds. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities, municipal
bonds and corporate debt securities. Securities classified as Level 3 include asset- backed securities in less liquid
markets.

Loan$ Held for Sale: Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The falr value of loans held
for sale is based on what secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics. As
such, manageinent clas31fles loans subjected to recurring fair value adjustments as Level 2.

mpalred Loans: Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as
individually impaired, management measures its impairment. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using
one of several methods, including collateral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value
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(15) Fair Value Dis‘closuresg continued

and discounted cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value
of the expécted fepayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans. At December 31, 2009,
substantially all of the impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the tollateral. In accordance with
FASB ASC Topic 820, impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral
require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable
* market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an
appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below
the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the 1mpa1red loan as nonrecurring

Level 3

Other Real Estate: Other real estate is adjusted to. fair value upon transfer of the loans to other real estate.
Subsequently, other real estate is carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent
market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s estimation of the value of the collateral. When the
. fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price, the Company records the foreclosed asset as
_ nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the

collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company

i [ .
records the other real estate as nonrecurring Level 3.

The tables below presents the &)mpany’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements

fall

~Assets
Securities

Assets
Securities
Loans held for sale

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in

Balance at _ g
December 31, 2009 » ;
(In thQusands) (Level 1) -- (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 66903 ~ $ - $ 66,903 $ -
" Balance at.
December 31, 2008 ‘ :
(In thousands) (Level 17) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 79762 $ - $ 7979 $ -
$ 1,639 $ - $ - 1639 % -

accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles: These include assets that are measured at the
lower of cost or fair value. The table below presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2008, aggregated by the level in the fair value hlerarchy within which those

measurements fall.

Assets
Impaired loans
Other real estate

Assets
Impaired loans
Other real estate

Balance at - . _
December 31, 2009 '
(In thousands) “(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 17706 S - s - $ 17,706
6915 - ) - o 6915
Balance at
December 31, 2008
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 17,531 $ - $ S8 11s31

1,782 : - - ’ 1,782

N

NOILYHOdYOD TVIDNVYNI4 3INODO

37



ANNUAL REPORT 2009

38

e

NoTEeS 1O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(15) Fair Value Disclosures, continued

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recognized adjustments related to impaired loans and other
real estate that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. Approximately $1,960,000 of losses related to
impaired loans and $714,000 of losses related to other real estate were recognized as either charge-offs or specific
allocations within the allowance for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments
for. Which it is practicable to estimate that value: :

~

El

Cash and Cash Equivalents

* For cash, due from banks, and federal funds sold, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of falr. value

Investment Securities Available for Sale
Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices. .

Restricted Equity Securities : ) -
The carrying amount of restricted equity securities approximates fair value. ‘

Loans and Loans Held for Sale

_ The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which
- similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings. For variable rate loans, the carrying amount is

a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated based on discounted contractual
cash flows or underlying collateral value, where applicable. Loans held for sale are valued based on the current
price at which these loans could be sold into the secondary market.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

The fair value of demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, savings, and securities sold under repurchase
agreements is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date! The fair value of fixed maturity certificates of

deposit is_estimated by discounting the future cash. flows usmg the rates currently -offered for deposits of similar

remaining maturities.

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit
Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are generally short-term and carry variable interest rates.

" Therefore, both the carrying value and estimated fair value associated with these instruments are immaterial.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31,2009 and 2008 are as follows:

’

2009 ' 2008
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets: {(In thousands) ' o
Cash and cash equlvalents $ 24,736 24,736 20,062 20,062
Investment securities $ 66903 66,903 79,762 79,762
Restricted equity securities $ 556 556 679 . 679
Loans held for sale $ - - © 1,639 1,639
Loans, net $ 176,340 174,§96 191,557 191,214
L1ab1htles
Deposits and securities sold under
repurchase: agreement $ 260,256 260,651 - - 281491 . 281,682

L
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(16) Other Operating Income and Expenses -
Components of other operating income and expenses ‘which are greater than 1% of 1nterest income and other

income are as follows:
2009 2008

£

Other Income
Income and fees from ATM’s o , ~$ 505,990 484438
Other Expenses ’ ‘ '

FDIC insurance assessment expense
Professional fees

ATM process and settlement charges
Deposit program marketing expense
Other real estate expenses

906,445 173262
370,352 380,755

- 351,889 297,177 .
- 246,234
813,290 258,689

(R R ETT

(17) Oconee Financial Corporation (Parent Company Onfy) Financial Information

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

. ) ‘ Assets
Cash $ 70,519 167,865
! Investment in subsidiary X , 24,569,959 25,621,141
Other assets i ; . 45,135 8,182
$ 24,685,613 25,797,188
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ]
Other liabilities ‘ B - -
Stockholders’ equity - - : ' 24,685,613 " 25,797,188
\ ¥ $ 24,685,613 25,797,188
Statements of Operations _
B For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
- - 2009 2008 .
Dividenas from subsidiary ' a $ . - , _ 150,000
- Other expenses ) - : 97,346 51,825
Earnings (loss) before income tax benefit and equity in ’ '
undistributed loss of subsidiary . T (97,346) 98,175
 Income tax benefit ' - 36953 19,673
Earnings st‘s) before equity in undistributed loss , ;
of subsidiary . * ' (60,393) . 117,848
Equity in undistributed loss of subsidiary : (1',139,_3 16) (3,544,207)

Net loss - : . $  (1,199,709) (3,426,359)

~
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—
(17) Oconee Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only) Financial Information, continued

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31,2009 and 2008

- 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities: :
Net loss ’ . $ (1,199,709) (3.,426,359)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss .
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: ) )
Equity in undistributed loss of subsidiary 1,139.316  .3,544,207
Change in: : I ‘ ' "
Other assets . 7 (36,953) - (8,182)
Other liabilities X ' ' - (692)
. Net cash (used in) provi,ded by operating : (97.,346) l 108,974
" - activities : '
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid ; - ) (1,034,787) -
' Net casy used by financing activities - - (1,034,787)
Change in cash : - ‘ 97346y = - (925813)
Cash at beginning of year . 167;865 . 1,093,678
Cash at end of year ] $ . 70519 167,865
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Suite 1700

Atlanta, Georgia 30339-5946

JInvestor Relations e
Jerry K. Wages /
Senior Executive Vice President
Oconee Financial Corporation
- Post Office Box 205
Watkinsville, Georgia 30677 ..
Telephone: (706) 7696611

Oconee Financial Corporation

35 North Main Street

Post Office Box 205

Watkinsville, Georgia 30677
Telephone: (706) 769-6611
Facsimile: (706) 583-3878 ,

* Internet: www.oconeestatebank.com

Transfer Agent

Oconee State Bank

7920 Macon Highway

Post Office Box 205

Watkinsville, Georgia 30677

Telephone: (706) 769-6611

Facsimile: (706) 583-3878
Form 10-K e ‘

A copy of the Corporation’s Annual Report on

Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission, is available to each shaveholder

without charge upon written request to:

Jerry K. Wages _

Senior Executive Vice President
Oconee Financial Corporation.
Post Office Box 205
 Watkinsville, Georgia 30677
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“ ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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OcoNEE FiNnanciAL CORPORATION
OCcoONEE STATE BAaNk

Post Office Box 205 = Watkinsville, Georgié 30677
706.769.6611 ® www.oconeestatebank.com



